
MINUTES OF THE HARDYSTON TOWNSHIP PLANNING BOARD ME ETING HELD  
MAY 22, 2008 
 
CALL THE MEETING TO ORDER:  Chairman Miller called the meeting to order at 7:30 p.m. and 
read the following Statement of Compliance. 
 
STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE : Pursuant to the Open Public Meetings Act, Chapter 231,  
P.L. 1975, adequate notice as defined in section 3D of Chapter 21 P.L. 1975, has been made to the New 
Jersey Herald and is also posted on the bulletin board at the Hardyston Township Municipal Building. 
 
ROLL CALL: 
 
Leslie Hamilton – Present  
Ken Kievit – Present  
Robert Neubig – Excused  
William Hickerson – Present  
Robert F. Schultz – Present  
John Monell – Present  
James Homa – Present  
Brian Kaminski – Present  
Randy Roof (Alternate No. 1) – Present – Late 7:40 p.m.  
Stanley Kula (Alternate No. 2) – Present – Excused at 9:15 p.m. 
Carl Miller – Present  
 
OTHERS PRESENT:  Robert P. Guerin, P.E., P.P., Thomas J. Molica, Esq., and Anne-Marie Wilhelm, 
Land Use Administrator  
 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 
 
A motion to approve the Minutes of the Hardyston Township Planning Board Meeting Held  
April 24, 2008 was made by Ken Kievit and seconded by James Homa. Roll Call: Ken Kievit – yes, Bill 
Hickerson – yes, Robert Schultz – yes, John Monell – yes, James Homa – yes, Stanley Kula – yes, Carl 
Miller – yes.  The motion carried.  
 
 
RESOLUTIONS:   
 
PB-8-06-1a, Mogavero, Gerard; Florence Mogavero; and Frank Mogavero, Minor Subdivision,  
C Variances, Block 67 Lot 25.01:  The matter was carried to the June 26, 2008 meeting. 
 
PB-2-08-1, St. Jude the Apostle Parish, Preliminary/Final Site Plan, C Variance, Block 68 Lot 14:   
The matter was carried to the June 26, 2008 meeting. 
 
 
APPLICATIONS :   
 
PB-4-08-1, Richter, Tillman A. Amended Minor Subdivision, [Amends:  PB-10-05-1,] Block 67 
Lot 25.02: Francis J. McGovern, Esq., appeared on behalf of the Applicant.  Chris Richter, son of the 
Applicant, and Fred Platt, P.E., P.P., were sworn.  Mr. Platt was qualified and accepted as an expert 
witness by the Board.  Mr. McGovern stated the property consists of one lot containing two houses.  He 
stated the Applicant intends to split the 36-acre lot into three lots and ultimately build one more house on 
it for a member of the family.  He stated that Condition 1 of the 2006 approval, which addressed the 
common driveway design, is problematic.  He stated the Township requires a 12' wide driveway with  
2' wide shoulders on each side and certain turnout areas.  He stated that if there is any disturbance in the 
driveway area by increasing it to comply with the design standards, New Jersey Department of 
Environmental Protection (NJDEP) processes might be triggered that are next to impossible, if not 
impossible, to comply with.  He stated the associated expense would be phenomenal.  He stated the 
ordinance contemplates that there are certain properties that because of their features, the Board can 
exercise its discretion to waive design features.  He stated the Applicant requests a waiver of the design 
features.  
 



Minutes of the Hardyston Township Planning Board Meeting Held May 22, 2008 
Page 2 of 23 

Mr. Platt stated that the front of the property along Bunn Road is lower than the rear of the property, 
which rises up substantially.  He stated the front of the property contains a stream with wetlands 
delineated on both sides, it is a flood hazard area in a new riparian zone, and it is also a wetlands 
transition area.  He stated the area is heavily wooded and the wetlands transition area extends up the hill 
to the furthest point of the contemplated common driveway.  He stated the common portion of the 
existing driveway falls within the 150' wetlands transition area and any disturbance will trigger a NJDEP 
wetlands permit requirement.  He stated his concern is the flood and riparian zones.  He submitted 
Exhibit A-1, a colored rendering titled Minor Subdivision Detail, Prepared For Lot 25.02, Block 67, 
Situated in the Township of Hardyston, County of Sussex, New Jersey, prepared by Bernard M. Caffrey, 
Jr., L.S., P.P., revised 3-20-06.  He explained various NJDEP restrictions and their impact on the 
development.  
 
With reference to the flood zone, Mr. Platt stated an impounded area was found in the flood zone at the 
lower end of the driveway where there is a 15' existing pipe.  He stated this pipe is not sufficient to pass 
the 100-year storm.  He stated that should this storm occur, flood waters would overtop the lower section 
of the driveway by as much as two feet.  He stated there is a requirement that the NJDEP must review and 
approve any construction within the flood hazard area.  He stated that the Applicant was advised that 
since this is a subdivision that serves more than one house, the driveway would have to be constructed at 
an elevation one foot above the 100-year flood area.  He stated the existing driveway would have to be 
raised up three feet – two feet to get to the flood level, and another foot to be above the flood level.  
Mr. Platt stated this is very comprehensive with the amount of construction and the amount of grading 
and disturbance.  He stated the stream is considered a Category A stream and it is within a wood turtle 
habitat.  He stated that consequently, the pipe could not be replaced with another pipe.  Mr. Platt stated a 
bridge or a span is required to allow movement of wildlife back and forth through the habitat.  Mr. Platt 
stated that he did not foresee the NJDEP granting a hardship. 
 
With reference to the riparian zone, he stated the buffer is 150'.  He stated there is a hierarchy of permits 
required for activity in the zone.  He stated that should the Applicant wish to apply to widen the 
driveway, he calculated that the disturbance would be in excess of the regulatory requirements.  He stated 
that meeting the requirements would be at odds with the Township requirements.  He stated that the 
Applicant would like design waivers from the widening of the driveway due to the disturbance and from 
the requirement to install turnouts every 500', which the NJDEP will not approve. 
 
Board members conducted a review of the following report.  Comments were noted as follows: 
 

 



Minutes of the Hardyston Township Planning Board Meeting Held May 22, 2008 
Page 3 of 23 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 



Minutes of the Hardyston Township Planning Board Meeting Held May 22, 2008 
Page 4 of 23 

· Mr. McGovern stated and Mr. Platt confirmed that the Applicant shrunk the proposed 
easement from 50' to 25' and this affected the redrafting of the boundaries.  Mr. Guerin 
stated this was acceptable. 

 

 

 
· The Applicant agreed. 

 

 
· The Applicant agreed to change the wording to turnout. 

 

 
· McGovern stated a revised Maintenance Agreement was submitted for Mr. Collin’s 

review.   
 

 
· The Applicant agreed. 

 

 
· The Applicant agreed. 

 

 
· The Applicant agreed. 

 



Minutes of the Hardyston Township Planning Board Meeting Held May 22, 2008 
Page 5 of 23 

 
Board members discussed safety issues and the driveway waiver requests.  Mr. Platt provided an 
overview of the driveway’s grade.  Mr. Richter testified that several vehicles have made it up the 
driveway during his 25 years of living at the property.  Mr. Platt stated the driveway is adequate for fire 
truck access.  The Applicant agreed to meet with the Fire Department for a test run of a truck up the 
driveway.  With reference to existing vegetation and a willow tree at the entrance of the driveway,  
Mr. Platt explained that the NJDEP regulates transition areas and there is a NJDEP permit requirement for 
maintenance of same.  He stated the Applicant could agree to trim the existing vegetation.  He stated a 
dead willow at the entranceway could be removed.   
 
Board members discussed a potential repair to a pipe in the transition area.  Mr. Platt stated that you 
cannot replace pipe without a permit in the flood hazard area.  He stated there are also permitting 
requirements for repairs of existing conditions. 
 
Chairman Miller opened the meeting to the public.  No public participants addressed the Board.  The 
meeting was closed to the public. 
 
The matter was carried to the June 26, 2008 at 7:30 p.m. with the condition that the Applicant meet with 
the Fire Department.  
 
 
PB-5-08-2, Sussex National Development Corporation, Amended Preliminary and Final Site Plan, 
Farmer’s Market, Block 16 Lot 8.03:  Mr. Molica confirmed that notice was in order.  Mr. Guerin stated 
that he had no objections to a waiver of a formal site plan.  A motion to grant a waiver of a formal site 
plan was made by Bill Hickerson and seconded by Ken Kievit.  Roll Call: Leslie Hamilton – yes, Ken 
Kievit – yes, Robert Schultz – yes, Bill Hickerson – yes, John Monell – yes, James Homa – yes, Brian 
Kaminski – yes, Carl Miller – yes.  The motion carried.  M. Richard Valenti, Esq., appeared on behalf of 
the Applicant.  Dale E. Pierson, Administrator of Development, and Thomas F. Graham, P.E., were 
sworn.  Mr. Graham was accepted as an expert witness.  Mr. Valenti presented the Applicant’s request for 
a farmers market to run on Saturdays from 10 a.m. – 2 p.m., with ten visitor parking spaces and ten 
vendor parking spaces off Wild Turkey Way.  Ms. Pierson provided an overview of the project stating the 
market would be temporarily located at the Crystal Springs entrance off Route 94 and Wild Turkey Way.  
She stated the Applicant would like to erect a 40' x 60' tent and leave it up for the season.  The season 
was defined as the period from June 14 through the third week in October.  Ms. Pierson stated that the 
vendors were not large distributors and if their vehicles were problematic, they would be asked to park 
them in a different area of Crystal Springs Resort.  Mr. Guerin confirmed the height of the tent could not 
exceed the 15' ordinance limitation.  He noted that the area is relatively flat and more spaces could be put 
in if necessary.  Mr. Miller noted that the matter was discussed in subcommittee and if the market 
becomes a problem, the matter would need to be reviewed by the Board.  Mr. Guerin noted that if 
additional spaces were to be added, grading would be necessary. 
 
Referencing the site plan, Thomas F. Graham, P.E., noted that the market would be located in the corner 
created by Route 94 and Wild Turkey Way and it is more than 250' in from Route 94.  He confirmed that 
there is a preexisting driveway accessing the space that was previously used to store woodchips, mulch, 
and farm equipment.  He stated the mounds along Wild Turkey Way screen the area.   He stated access to 
the area would be via Wild Turkey Way.  He noted that the area is delineated with gravel and could be 
made more stable.  He confirmed that no bathroom facilities are proposed. 
 



Minutes of the Hardyston Township Planning Board Meeting Held May 22, 2008 
Page 6 of 23 

With reference to the prevention of possible parking along Wild Turkey Way, Mr. Graham stated there is 
a lot of landscaping along Wild Turkey Way between Route 94 and the driveway that will discourage 
parking.  He presented that further up, Wild Turkey Way is approximately 26' wide, and there does not 
appear to be a place to park with the ongoing traffic.  He stated the Applicant could place No Parking 
Signs in this area.  Mr. Guerin noted there are also 4' – 5' high berms in the area.  With reference to Plan 
Note 10, Mr. Graham agreed to remove it from the plan. 
 
Ms. Pierson confirmed that the Applicant would like to use banners for signage.  The Applicant was 
directed to work with the zoning officer on the matter. 
 
The Board conducted a review of the following report.  Discussion commentary is inserted as noted: 
 

 
 

 



Minutes of the Hardyston Township Planning Board Meeting Held May 22, 2008 
Page 7 of 23 

 
 

 
 

· Ms. Pierson stated that there should be no difference in traffic as 90% of the people 
would be residents and golfers.  She noted that the Shotmeyer and Ardleigh were not 
built-out yet.  The Applicant confirmed that if there were a problem, the matter would 
require further Board review.  

 

 
· The Applicant agreed to implement the use of obstructions such as hay bales or baskets 

of produce and to remove same when the market closes each day. 
 

 
· Thomas F. Graham, P.E., stated that the signs will be out of the right-of-way and that the 

Applicant would not put up signs that require permitting without a permit.   
 

 
· Mr. Graham stated the area would be stabilized and confirmed that there would be no 

portable toilets at the market. 



Minutes of the Hardyston Township Planning Board Meeting Held May 22, 2008 
Page 8 of 23 

 

 
· Following discussion, the Applicant agreed the hours of operation would be Saturday 

and/or Sunday, 10 a.m. – 5 p.m. 

 
· Ms. Pierson stated the vendors are individuals that grow the produce or sell food-related 

products. 
 

 
· The Applicant agreed.  The Board confirmed that customers could use all twenty spaces 

but any use of more than twenty spaces would require Board review. 

 
· Mr. Graham stated the Sussex County Planning Board reviewed the matter and the site is 

exempt. 
   

 
Chairman Miller opened the meeting to the public.  Mr. Donald Trien was sworn.  He stated that he is 
delighted to have a farmer’s market near his home and that he has attended various farmer’s markets 
including one just south of Minerals and there was  never more than two or three cars because the persons 
take a few minutes.  He stated he is happy they are putting it close to his home.   
 
Mr. John Carrico stated he is the president of the Crystal Spring’s master homeowner’s association and 
that he was concerned about the number of spaces.  He submitted Exhibit B, a copy of letter dated  
May 9, 2008, addressed Dear Crystal Springs Homeowner, and signed by Andrew Mulvihill.  
[Secretary’s Note:  There is no Exhibit A in this matter.]  He stated he was notified that the market will 



Minutes of the Hardyston Township Planning Board Meeting Held May 22, 2008 
Page 9 of 23 

have music, clowns, and magicians.  He stated he was concerned about the adequacy of the amount of 
parking spaces.  Chairman Miller stated the Board is concerned about the size of the market and if it 
grows, the Board will retain jurisdiction.  Mr. Miller stated that the market is not designed to be a concert 
or other spectacle and that if it is, the Board would authorize the zoning officer to revoke the permit.   
Mr. Valenti stated that the Applicant is applying for the limited operation as presented and to the extent 
the letter presents other than what was presented to the Board, he stated it is not going to happen.  
No other members of the public addressed the Board.  Chairman Miller closed the meeting to the public. 
 
A motion to approve the application conditioned upon the market operating from 10 a.m. – 5 p.m., on 
Saturday and Sunday only; Memorial Day weekend to the last weekend in October; subject to the use 
being limited to farmer’s market products; subject to a 15' height restriction applied to the tent, measured 
midway from the eave in accordance with the ordinance; subject to Mr. Guerin’s report; no music; no 
clowns; and subject to the Applicant removing the tent when the season is over, was made by Ken Kievit 
and seconded by Robert Schultz.  Roll Call: Leslie Hamilton – yes, Ken Kievit – yes, Robert Schultz – 
yes, Bill Hickerson – yes, John Monell – yes, James Homa – yes, Brian Kaminski – yes, Randy Roof – 
yes, Carl Miller – yes.  The motion carried.  
 
Mr. Valenti asked if music and a clown could be used on opening day.  He confirmed that it is not 
intended that there is going to be repeated outdoor entertainment or concerts there.  The Board consented.  
The Board also waived the reading of the resolution and the Applicant acknowledged that they would 
proceed at their own risk. 
 
The Board recessed from 9:00 p.m. to 9:15 p.m. 
 
 
PB-5-08-1, Beaver Run Shopping Center, L.L.C., Preliminary Site Plan, Block 63 Lot 1.01:   
Patrick J. Dwyer, Esq., appeared on behalf of the Applicant.  Thomas J. Molica, Esq., noted there was a 
technical deficiency in the notice and the matter could not proceed beyond a concept review.  Mr. Dwyer 
agreed to work with Mr. Collins to resolve variance and waiver identification issues affecting notice.   
Robert Tessier, P.P., AICP, submitted the following documents for the Board’s review:  Existing 
Conditions Map & Aerial Photo, Beaver Run Shopping Center, L.L.C., Tax Lot 1.01, Block 63 dated 
5/19/08, sheet 1 of 1, prepared by Douwe Dykstra; Proposed Conditions Map & Aerial Photo, Beaver 
Run Shopping Center, L.L.C., Tax Lot 1.01, Block 63, dated 5/19/08, sheet 1 of 1, prepared by Douwe 
Dykstra; Circulation Plan, Beaver Run Shopping Center, L.L.C., Tax Lot 1.01, Block 63, dated 5/19/08, 
sheet 1 of 1, prepared by Douwe Dykstra; Presentation Plan, Beaver Run Shopping Center, L.L.C., Tax 
Lot 1.01, Block 63, dated 5/19/08, sheet 1 of 1, prepared by Douwe Dykstra; and Cross Sections, 
Circulation Plan, Beaver Run Shopping Center, L.L.C., Tax Lot 1.01, Block 63, dated 4/21/08, sheet 1 of 
1, prepared by Douwe Dykstra.  Mr. Tessier provided an overview of the project. He stated significant cut 
and fill would occur to create a plateau on the top piece and fill the bottom of the parcel.  He stated  
347,000 cubic yards of fill would be required.  He stated there is a current LOI.  Mr. Dykstra stated test 
borings were performed in the upper area and the results were varied.  Chairman Miller stated the Board 
would like expert testimony in the matter of blasting.  
 
Board members reviewed the following report.  Comments are noted as follows.  

 



Minutes of the Hardyston Township Planning Board Meeting Held May 22, 2008 
Page 10 of 23 

 
 

 



Minutes of the Hardyston Township Planning Board Meeting Held May 22, 2008 
Page 11 of 23 

 

 
 

· Mr. Guerin stated his personal preference is the 24" x 36" sheets for ease of handling.  
He stated that the overall plan sheet is at 1" equals 100" and this can be shown on 24" x 
36" and this is helpful to allow a view of the whole development on one sheet.  He stated 
he believed it would be more appropriate to allow a waiver to permit the scale to be 
smaller than 1" equals 100". 

 
· Chairman Miller stated he would like a set of 11"x17" drawings.  The Applicant agreed 

to use 24" x 36" sheets. 



Minutes of the Hardyston Township Planning Board Meeting Held May 22, 2008 
Page 12 of 23 

 

 
· Mr. Guerin and Chairman Miller stated no objections to the waiver request. 
 

 
 

· Mr. Guerin stated the information has not been provided and the Board needs the information. 
Mr. Dywer explained that firm tenants are not in place for the two large buildings identified on the 
plans and the tenant would provide the architecturals.  He requested a waiver from the checklist 
item.  Mr. Guerin stated the Board could waive the item with the stipulation that no building 
permit could be issued for either anchor store until the Applicant returns to the Board with full 
architectural plans.  

 
· Mr. Grant stated that either of the anchor stores would be equal or less than the proposed square 

footage.  He stated if there were any significant change, the Applicant would return to the Board.  
He stated an architect has been hired to give the center a consistent theme.  He acknowledged that 
a change to the footprint would require an amended site plan. 

 

 



Minutes of the Hardyston Township Planning Board Meeting Held May 22, 2008 
Page 13 of 23 

· Mr. Guerin stated the information is necessary for review.  Mr. Dykstra stated there are many 
open issues such as where the Applicant would tie the sewer back into.  He stated this makes it 
problematic to design the system if they do not know if they are going directly to the SCMUA 
plant or going down the highway to the Sussex force main or to the Hardyston force main.   
Mr. Guerin stated that SCMUA does not care which way it is done and he suggested that the 
Applicant choose.  Mr. Grant stated there are legal issues with the 25,000 gallons coming from the 
town of Sussex and applications to the state and county need to be made.  He stated a NJDEP 
review is pending.  Mr. Grant stated the question is where to run the sewer.   He stated he is not 
sure where the sewer line is going.  He stated in 2001, the Borough of Sussex auctioned 25,000 
gallons and the Applicant went to the HTMUA for their help and sponsorship in purchasing it.  He 
stated in cooperation with the HTMUA, a successful bid for the sewer allocation was made and 
the allocation has been maintained.  He stated there is no reason for anyone to believe the sewer 
will not be connected to the project.  He stated there is also an additional allocation of 10,000 
gallons from the HTMUA for the property.  Mr. Dwyer noted that there is also a Developer’s 
Agreement between the developer and the HTMUA with respect to the 25,000-gallon sewer 
allocation.  He stated there is no litigation pending.  He stated there is an issue regarding 
transmission fees where it was agreed that the developer would pay fees to the Borough of Sussex 
as if the sewer was actually being used and the developer is current on those charges.  He stated 
the dispute has to do with the amount the Borough is permitted to charge: as recently, the Borough 
of Sussex tried to triple the amount.  Mr. Grant stated their option would be a connection directly 
to the SCMUA plant. Mr. Dykstra stated the design will be included in the next set of plans.  
Chairman Miller stated the Board must know the infrastructure details to determine if the site is 
going to work.    
 

· Mr. Dykstra stated that the water system was discussed with Michael G. Vreeland, P.E., P.P., and 
an onsite system was reviewed to eliminate issues with a neighboring developer and also the 
option of tying into the water system across the street and developing wells.  He stated a 
Developer’s Agreement is being formulated with the HTMUA to work out the details on the water 
system.  He stated that for now, the details of an onsite water system would be prepared so as not 
to slow down the application.  Mr. Grant stated it was the Applicant’s future intent to tie into 
Indian Field’s water system and there are NJDEP regulations that exceed the regulations for a 
private system and the Applicant does not want to depend on that connection for the project to lift.  
He confirmed that the onsite well does not have potable water. 

 
 

 
· Mr. Dwyer stated the Applicant would provide additional information for the next 

meeting.  
 



Minutes of the Hardyston Township Planning Board Meeting Held May 22, 2008 
Page 14 of 23 

 
· Mr. Dwyer stated there is ambiguity in the ordinance between variance and waivers.  

He agreed to consult with Mr. Collins and Mr. Molica.  Mr. Tessier stated testimony 
would be provided concerning the amount of parking for the home improvement 
center.  Chairman Miller presented the Board is amenable to a banked reserve of 
parking. 

 

 
· Mr. Tessier stated the Applicant would testify when the application is made. 

 

 
· Mr. Tessier stated the plans would be adjusted and the Applicant would work with  

Mr. Guerin. 

 
· The Applicant agreed to review the issue. 

 



Minutes of the Hardyston Township Planning Board Meeting Held May 22, 2008 
Page 15 of 23 

 
 

· The Applicant stated testimony would be presented. 

 
· The Applicant agreed to work with Mr. Guerin on the issue.  

 

 
· Mr. Grant stated the Applicant had no problem with the suggestion. 

 

 
· Mr. Dykstra explained that squeezing it into 15' reduced the number of retaining walls. 

 
 

 
· Mr. Tessier stated that most of the site layout issues could be addressed with the 

engineer before the next meeting. 



Minutes of the Hardyston Township Planning Board Meeting Held May 22, 2008 
Page 16 of 23 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 



Minutes of the Hardyston Township Planning Board Meeting Held May 22, 2008 
Page 17 of 23 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 



Minutes of the Hardyston Township Planning Board Meeting Held May 22, 2008 
Page 18 of 23 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Minutes of the Hardyston Township Planning Board Meeting Held May 22, 2008 
Page 19 of 23 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 



Minutes of the Hardyston Township Planning Board Meeting Held May 22, 2008 
Page 20 of 23 

 

 

 

 

 
Chairman Miller opened the meeting to the public.  Ms. Patricia Prince stated she was concerned about 
the environment, pollution, blasting, her well, garbage, and her view.  Board members discussed blasting 
precautionary measures they were familiar with from prior applications.  Mr. Guerin noted that an option 
could be for her to tie into the developer’s water system. Mr. Grant confirmed that this would be no 
problem.  Mr. Miller stated that the developer would be asked to use landscaping to buffer the site as well 
as to minimize adverse impact due to lighting.  She stated she has lived at her residence for 45 years.  She 
asked what supermarket was proposed.  Mr. Ron Grant stated it was not known.  She asked how many 
years for construction.  It was noted it was a significant grading project and that grading and blasting 
would take at least one year to create the two pads that would be ready for construction.  Chairman Miller 
stated the Board would like a phasing plan. Mr. Tessier stated her home was approximately 300' from the 
proposed store and the store would sit approximately 16' below her property line.  Mr. Dyskstra noted 
that 60% of the property needed blasting.  Ms. Prince stated her quality of life would be wrecked with the 
construction. 
 
Having no other public participants, Chairman Miller closed the meeting to the public.   
 
The matter was carried to the June 26, 2008 meeting with notice required. 
 
 
BILLS:  A motion to recommend payment of the bills cited below to the Township Council was made by 
Ken Kievit and seconded by James Homa.  Roll Call: Leslie Hamilton – yes, Ken Kievit – yes, Robert 
Schultz – yes, Bill Hickerson – yes, John Monell – yes, James Homa – yes, Brian Kaminski – yes, Randy 
Roof – yes, Carl Miller – yes.  The motion carried.  



Minutes of the Hardyston Township Planning Board Meeting Held May 22, 2008 
Page 21 of 23 

HARDYSTON TOWNSHIP PLANNING BOARD 
ESCROW REPORT 

MAY 22, 2008 

 Vogel, Chait, Collins AND Schneider  

 

Invoice 47830 Planning OE                                                                   $ 600.00 

Invoice 47831 PB-5-08-2, Sussex National Dev. Corp 300.00 

  [Farmer’s Market] 

Invoice 47832 ZB-10-06-1, Crystal Springs Builders, 1230.00 

 [Grand Cascades:  Pool Conservatory] 

Invoice 47833 SND-01-General Account 240.00 

 [Village Center] 

Invoice 47835 PB-3-05-1c, CJS Investments, Inc. 285.00 

 [Emerald Estates] 

Invoice 47836 WV-02, Govel, Polizzi, Walden: General Escrow 75.00 

 [Ridgefield Commons] 

Invoice 47837 PB-9-07-2, Bubalo, P. 180.00 

 [Forest Knoll] 

Invoice 47834 PB-8-06-2, Mogavero, F. 60.00 

Invoice 47838 PBC-12-07-1, Patel, P. 105.00 

Invoice 47839 PB-2-08-1, St. Jude the Apostle 45.00 

Invoice 47840 PB-5-08-1, Beaver Run Shopping Center, L.L.C. 150.00 

 

HARDYSTON TOWNSHIP PLANNING BOARD 
           ESCROW REPORT 

MAY 22, 2008 

ADDENDUM 

New Jersey Herald  

Invoice 1711091 Legal Notice                                                                     $ 27.45 

 

Heyer, Gruel & Associates  

Invoice 27983 Planning OE  450.00 

 

Guerin & Vreeland Engineering, Inc.  

Invoice WO600Q PB-3-05-1, CJS, Inc., 3727.50 

Invoice WO748D MCS-01, Crystal Springs Builders, L.L.C.,  367.50 

Invoice WO753D Planning OE  892.50 

Invoice WO493L PB-5-08-1, Beaver Run Shopping Center, L.L.C.,  420.00 

Invoice WO482X HFHJL-01, Indian Fields General Escrow 262.50 

Invoice 713E PB-10-06-2, Metra Industries 367.50 

Invoice 703I PB-7-07-1, Geis Construction 420.00 

Invoice 674D PB-10-05-1, Richter, T. 472.50 

Invoice WO758D PB-2-08-1, St. Jude the Apostle Parish 630.00 



Minutes of the Hardyston Township Planning Board Meeting Held May 22, 2008 
Page 22 of 23 

Invoice 743E SND-01- Sussex National Development: Gen. Escrow 630.00 

Invoice WO720Q WV-02, Govel, Polizzi, Walden: General Escrow  420.00 

Invoice WO769A PB-5-08-2, Sussex National Development  420.00  

 

 
DISCUSSION: Leslie Hamilton and Ken Kievit recused themselves from a review of an ordiance in the 
matter of COAH.  Board members reviewed ORDINANCE 2008-05 TOWNSHIP OF HARDYSTON, AN 
ORDINANCE OF TOWNSHIP OF HARDYSTON AMENDING SUBSECTION 185-90.1F ENTITLED 
“GROWTH SHARE” OF SECTION 185-90.1 ENTITLED “LOW AND MODERATE INCOME 
HOUSING” OF THE COMPREHENSIVE LAND MANAGEMENT CODE.  A motion to endorse the 
ordinance was made by Carl Miller and seconded by Bill Hickerson.  Roll Call: Robert Schultz – yes, Bill 
Hickerson – yes, John Monell – yes, James Homa – yes, Brian Kaminski – yes, Randy Roof – yes, Carl 
Miller – yes.  The motion carried.  
 
Robert P. Guerin, P.E., P.P., presented compliance issues and correspndence generated in the matter of 
PB-7-06-1, Geis Construction, Inc., Preliminary & Final site Plan, Block 62, Lot 22.01.   
 
 
CORRESPONDENCE:  Board members received the following correspondence.  There were no 
comments. 
 

Hardyston Township Planning Board 
Correspondence List – May 22, 2008 

 
 

1. John Risko, Assistant County Engineer, SC Dept. of Engineering & Planning 
Re: SCPB# 36(PMS)07 -  12’ Span Arch Culvert - Ogdensburg Borough 
(April 3, 2008) 
 

2. Wini Straub, District Manager, Sussex County Soil Conservation District 
Re: Soil Erosion  & Sediment Control Plan #HB049, Project:  Shonika Commercial Site;  
Block 1 (Borough of Hamburg) / 64 (Hardyston Twp.), Lot 31.32 (Borough of Hamburg) / 7 
(Hardyston Twp.), Borough of Hamburg/Hardyston Twp.(April 10, 2008) 
 

3. Antoinette Wasiewicz, Senior Planning Aide, SC Dept. of Engineering & Planning 
Re: Preliminary Site Plan, SCPB#: 57(PSP)07/08, Applicant:  West Essex Management,  
Block 62, Lot 18.12,  Park Drive   (April 11, 2008) 
 

4. Antoinette Wasiewicz, Senior Planning Aide, SC Dept. of Engineering & Planning 
Re: Preliminary Site Plan, SCPB#: 19(PSP)08, Applicant:  SJZ, LLC,   
Block 36 Lot 2, (Hamburg); Block 14 Lot 21.02 (Hardyston)     (April 15, 2008) 
 

5. Michael J. Quigley, III Esq., Castano Quigley, LLC 
Re: Pottersville Properties Development LLC;  
 Letter of Remedy in Answer to Infractions Noted by Construction Dept.  (April 17, 2008) 
 

6. Herbert J. Yardley, Administrator, SC Dept. of Environmental & Public Health 
Re: Farmers Market/Crystal Springs; Compliance with County and Local Food Licensing and 
Inspections.  (April 17, 2008) 
 

7. William G. Dressel, Jr., Executive Director, NJ State League of Municipalities 
Re: Contribution Request/Application Towards Legal Challenge to Set Aside Proposed 3rd 
Round Regulations      (April 21, 2008) 
 

8. Wini Straub, District Manager, Sussex County Soil Conservation District 
Re: Soil Erosion  & Sediment Control Plan #HY175, Project:  Entrance Roadway – Route 94 
to Crystal Springs II, Wild Turkey Golf Course; Pending Expiration of Certified Plan                                              
(April 22, 2008) 
 

9. Andrew Westhoven, P.E., Challoner & Associates, LLC 



Minutes of the Hardyston Township Planning Board Meeting Held May 22, 2008 
Page 23 of 23 

Re: Resolution Compliance - Project: CJS Investments, Inc., Emerald Estates, HTPB-3-05-1C,  
Block 63 Lots 26 & 27, Wheatsworth Road    (April 24, 2008) 
 

10. Barry Fisher, Senior Planner, SC Dept. of Engineering & Planning 
Re: Preliminary Major Subdivision, SCPB#: 36(PMS)07/08, Applicant:  
MNB Realty Company LLC,   Block 11 Lot 21, Spring Street, Ogdensburg  (April 25, 2008) 
 
 

11. William T. Haggerty, Esq., Dolan & Dolan P.A. 
Re: Gerard Mogavero, Minor Subdivision, “C” Variances, HTPB-8-06-1a,  
Block 67 Lot 25.01, Confirmation of Planning Board’s April 24, 2008 Decision of Dismissal 
Project Without Prejudice                        (April 25, 2008) 
 

12. William T. Haggerty, Esq., Dolan & Dolan P.A. 
Re: Frank Mogavero, Minor Subdivision Extension, “C” Variances,  HTPB-8-06-2a, Block 71 
Lot 7.01, Confirmation of Planning Board’s April 24, 2008 Decision To Carry Application to June 
2008 Meeting   (April 25, 2008) 
 

13. Antoinette Wasiewicz, Senior Planning Aide, SC Dept. of Engineering & Planning 
Re: Preliminary Site Plan, SCPB#: 12(PSP)08, Applicant:  Group 5 Development,  LLC, 
Block 70 Lot 7.05 Route 23, Franklin Borough             (April 28, 2008) 
 

14. Antoinette Wasiewicz, Senior Planning Aide, SC Dept. of Engineering & Planning 
Re: Combined Subdivision Site Plan, SCPB#: 78(CSS)07,  Applicant:  Crystal Springs 
Builders, Block 14, Lots 24.01 & 24.02, Route 94        (April 28, 2008) 
 

15. Antoinette Wasiewicz, Senior Planning Aide, SC Dept. of Engineering & Planning 
Re: Preliminary Site Plan,  SCPB#: 19(PSP)08, Applicant:  SJZ, LLC 
Block 36 Lot 2 (Hamburg), Block 14 Lot 21.02 (Hardyston)   (April 28, 2008) 
 

16. Morris County Park Commission & Andover Twp. Environmental Commission 
Re: Stormwater Management Options / Stormwater Gardens Program, Friday, October 17, 
2008, Frelinghuysen Arboretum 
 

17. Minutes:  Hardyston Township Municipal Utilities Authority – April 7, 2008 
 

 
PUBLIC PARTICIPATION:  No members of the public addressed the Board. 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT:  Having no further business, a motion to adjourn was made by Leslie Hamilton and 
seconded by Ken Kievit.  The meeting was adjourned at 10:50 p.m. 

 
Minutes respectfully submitted by: 
 
 
Anne-Marie Wilhelm  
Land Use Administrator  


